
 

 

 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, March 27, 2018 

8:30 AM 
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM  

347 ANDRIEUX STREET, SONOMA, CA 95476 

 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special 

accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please contact the Interim 

District Clerk, Vivian Woodall, at vwoodall@svh.com or (707) 935.5005  at least 

48 hours prior to the meeting. 

  

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 

everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Hohorst  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 

 At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the 

agenda. It is recommended you keep your comments to three minutes or less. 

Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted 

upon by the Committee at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public 

will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up.  

Hohorst  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 GC Minutes for 02.27.18 

Hohorst Action 

4. REVIEW OF GIFT ACCEPTANCE POLICY #P-2013.06.06-3 Hohorst Inform/Action 

5. REVIEW OF GIFT, TICKET AND HONORARIA POLICY #P-

2014.02.06-2 

Hohorst Inform/Action 

6. ADJOURN 

 

Hohorst  

 

mailto:vwoodall@svh.com


 

 

 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES 

TUESDAY, February 27, 2018 

8:30 AM 
 

 ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

347 ANDRIEUX STREET, SONOMA, CA 95476 

 RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 

everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Hohorst  

Called to order at 8:30 am   

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Hohorst  

No public comment   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 GC Minutes For 01.23.18 

Hohorst Action 

  MOTION: by 

Hohorst to 

approve. All in 

favor. 

4. REVIEW OF TERM LIMITS FOR PUBLIC MEMBERS OF 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

Hohorst Inform/Action 

 Agreed to recommend to the Board for discussion that public 

members of Board Committees be appointed for three-year terms, 

with a two term maximum (i.e., one reappointment only). 

 Agreed to recommend to the Board that the “term” approach be 

referred to the Finance and Quality Committees for their input and 

then returned to the Governance Committee for an updated draft 

before final consideration by the Board. 

 Agreed that in the event of a public member resigning from a 

committee in the middle of a term, the “replacement” member 

would be appointed to a full three-year term. 

 Agreed to take no position at this time with regard to how the 

change would be phased in. 

  

5. REVIEW OF BOARD POLICY ON BOARD LEGISLATIVE AND 

REGULATORY POLICY POSITIONS #P-2013.06.06-5 

Hohorst Inform/Action 

  MOTION: by 

Boerum to 

approve the 

redraft version of 

the policy. All in 

favor. 

6. ADJOURN Hohorst  

Meeting adjourned at 9:15 am   



 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

GIFT ACCEPTANCE POLICY 
#P-2013.06.06-3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted on: December 7, 2012 
 
 
 
 

  



Gift Acceptance Policy     Page 2 of 6 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
  

I.    Overview ...................................................................................................................................3 

II.   Types of Gifts  ...........................................................................................................................3 

III.  Receiving Personal Items ..........................................................................................................6 

IV.  Gift Appraisal and/or Valuation ...............................................................................................6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gift Acceptance Policy     Page 3 of 6 
 

I. OVERVIEW 
 

The purpose of this Gift Acceptance policy is to give guidance and counsel to those 
concerned with soliciting or receiving gifts. To prevent misunderstandings, these 
guidelines should be viewed as flexible and realistic in order to accommodate 
unpredictable fundraising situations and donor expectations. Such situations and 
expectations, however, must be consistent with the spirit of this policy.  
 
The Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation accepts gifts for the following purposes: Capital 
expenditures, renovation and new construction of hospital buildings, equipment 
purchases, medical and other professional health care education, community health 
education, specific health care programs, medical research, patient care and hospital 
operations.  In addition, the Foundation may raise funds to underwrite new programs and 
services, or underwrite campaigns. 
 
A gift is defined as a voluntary transfer of assets from a person or organization to a 
Foundation where no goods or services are expected, implied or forthcoming for the 
donor. The gift is motivated by charitable intent and can be designated for unrestricted or 
restricted general areas of use.  Once the Foundation accepts a gift, it becomes 
Foundation property. 
 
The Foundation reserves the right to review all gifts prior to acceptance

 

 to 
determine the appropriateness of the gift, and to determine whether the Foundation 
may comply with the donor’s wishes regarding restricted uses.   

II. TYPES OF GIFTS  
 

Gifts can be: unrestricted or
 

 restricted. 

An unrestricted gift is made with no stipulation as to its purpose and is credited to “area 
of most need” within the Foundation’s records.  The Foundation transmits donations to 
the District in accordance with the Foundation’s Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Sonoma Valley Health Care District.  All endowment funds will be held by the 
Foundation and invested per the policies and guidelines of the Foundation.  
 
Restricted gifts are gifts made with a stipulation by the donor as to its specific purpose or 
use. The Foundation will accept gifts for specific programs and purposes stipulated by the 
donor, provided that such gifts are consistent with the stated mission, purposes and 
priorities of the District. Such gifts may be:  
 Temporarily restricted, which means the gift will be expended for the designated 

purpose or used within a reasonable period from the date of the gift; or   
 Permanently restricted, which means the gift will be placed in the Foundation’s 

Endowment Fund.  
 

The Executive Director of the Foundation, in consultation with the CEO of the Hospital, 
will also determine if that gift would require a major capital expenditure, creation of a 
new program, or other burden on the part of the hospital to comply with the donor’s 



Gift Acceptance Policy     Page 4 of 6 
 

restriction, or if the restriction is in conflict with any known laws or with the District’s 
strategic plans for the Hospital, and make recommendation to the Foundation’s Board of 
Directors for final decision.  
 
In the case of restricted gifts that cannot be accepted, the Foundation’s Executive 
Director will make every effort to work with the donor to complete the gift in an 
acceptable manner.  If no agreement can be made, the gift will be returned or declined in 
its entirety.  

 
The Foundation accepts the following gifts: 

  
 Cash Gifts: Cash, checks, money orders, cashier's checks currency and charges to 

approved credit cards. These can be an outright gift or pledge over a specified time 
period. 
 

 Non-Cash Gifts: Bonds, securities, trusts, bequests, real property, personal property, 
gifts in kind to be used in the form in which given; royalties, copyrights, trademark 
rights, insurance policies naming the Foundation as beneficiary in whole or in part, or 
other forms of non-cash or non-cash equivalents. Gifts of tangible property both real 
and personal shall be immediately sold unless the Foundation Board of Directors or 
its advisors determines that it is in the Foundation’s best interest to retain the 
property. 

 
o Securities: The Foundation accepts gifts of marketable securities unless they 

cannot be assigned, have no apparent value or could create a liability for the 
hospital.  

 
o Gifts in Trust/Endowment Funds: The Foundation accepts gifts in trust and 

other planned gifts such as annuities, insurance, bequests and restricted special 
gifts that are put into an endowment fund to generate income for future use.   

 
o Real estate: Real estate will be accepted only after consultation with Foundation 

attorneys, and agreement with the Foundation’s Board and the Hospital CEO.  
The property’s condition, clear title, marketability, carrying costs, pending sale, 
and other relevant financial and environmental considerations will be evaluated 
through an inspection. Property value must be determined by an unrelated third-
party licensed appraiser. The fees incurred are the obligation of the donor, 
although the Foundation staff will likely work with the donor to ameliorate the 
costs. Note: these guidelines are also applicable to gifts of a personal residence 
from a donor’s life estate.   

 
o Gifts in kind:  An in-kind or non-cash charitable donation is a gift that is to be 

used in the form it is given, such as equipment, supplies or services. The 
Foundation requires all of the same information regarding a gift-in-kind that it 
does for cash or tangible donations:  i.e., donor’s name, mailing address, contact 
information, description of gift, etc. 

 



Gift Acceptance Policy     Page 5 of 6 
 

o Tangible personal property: Tangible personal property, such as artwork or 
collectibles, will be received only on approval of the Foundation. The property’s 
condition, marketability, potential liabilities and other relevant financial 
considerations will be evaluated through an unrelated third-party certified 
appraiser.  Title to gift property should be transferred to the Foundation 
unencumbered and properly documented.  The Foundation will sell or liquidate 
any gift property as soon as a value is established.   

 
o Automobiles and other vehicles: The Foundation accepts gifts of vehicles that 

are in working order and salable.  The Foundation may sell the donated car, may 
donate it to a District department in need of a vehicle or may use a third-party 
auction house to liquidate the vehicle.  (Note: IRS regulations require that the 
use/disposition of the vehicle be determined at the time of transfer to the 
Foundation.  Foundation staff will work with the donor to establish the anticipated 
use of the vehicle). 

 
o Life Insurance: The Board of Directors of the Foundation will determine if a gift 

of insurance is acceptable, taking into account the rating of the issuing company 
and other terms of the policy.  The Foundation must be named as both beneficiary 
and irrevocable owner of any insurance policy before a life insurance policy can 
be recorded as a gift.  The gift is valued at its interpolated terminal reserve value, 
or cash surrender value, upon receipt.  The policy should be “paid-up,” with no 
additional premiums required; a policy with outstanding loans against it will be 
refused.   

 
 Anonymous Gifts: Donors may elect to make any gift anonymously. Such gifts may 

be made personally by the donor with a request that s/he remain anonymous, or they 
may be made with the assistance of the donor's advisor (e.g. attorney). However, 
“anonymous” is not to be misconstrued as unknown to the Foundation.  In order to 
properly acknowledge the donor and for IRS tax reporting purposes, all donor data 
must be made available to the Foundation. 

 
 Tribute or Memorial Gifts: Memorial gifts enable donors to honor a special person 

or occasion.  Commemorative gifts are considered unrestricted unless restricted by 
the donor.  

 
 Employee Gifts via Payroll Deduction:  Employees may arrange through Human 

Resources to have a pledge deducted from their paycheck to be directed to a gift fund.  
This may be an ongoing commitment or an annual or one-time pledge.  Payroll 
pledges are recorded as annual pledges, with durations of not more than one year.  
The deductions will automatically be canceled upon employment termination. 

 
 Other Forms of Gifts: The Foundation may accept other forms of gifts not listed 

here with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Foundation.  
 

All gifts made in support of the Hospital District shall be made payable to Sonoma 
Valley Hospital Foundation, including checks and other negotiable instruments.  Title to 



Gift Acceptance Policy     Page 6 of 6 
 

other types of assets given in support of the Foundation, shall be conveyed to the 
Foundation, including real and personal property, securities and life insurance.  Gifts of 
tangible property, both real and personal, shall be immediately sold unless the Foundation 
Board determines that it is in the Foundation’s best interest to retain the property. 

 
III. RECEIVING PERSONAL ITEMS 

 
All personal property accepted by the Foundation will be held in a secure manner under 
dual control, with security protocols established with the Hospital President/CEO at the 
time of acceptance.  Because each gift will vary significantly, it is impossible to 
anticipate the proper storage needs for every possible donation (i.e. jewelry versus 
automobiles). However, it is critical that all departments adhere to the following 
procedure: 

 
 On receipt of any donation, the receiving department must contact the Foundation on 

the day of receipt, but in any case no later than the first business day following the 
day of receipt.  The Foundation will work with the Hospital President/CEO to ensure 
proper credit for the donor and proper disposition of the item.  

 
 On receipt of any individual

 

 item* valued at $500 or more, the Foundation office 
must be contacted by the next business day to evaluate the donation and determine 
proper next steps.  An initial valuation is based on either the donor’s claim of value, 
or the Foundation’s estimation, whichever is higher. The Foundation office will take 
necessary steps to obtain possession of the physical item from the department or work 
with the donor to obtain possession. 

 The item will be appraised and sold per the above policies.   
 
 The Foundation will supply the donor with all necessary receipts and IRS paperwork. 

 
 The funds will be held for the District with proper credit to the program, service, 

endowment, or capital needs of the District as directed by the donor.  Should the 
donor not specify a preference, the funds will be credited to unrestricted funds. 

 
*Note: an “individual” gift or item includes collections or sets 
 

IV. GIFT APPRAISAL AND/OR VALUATION 
 
Current IRS regulations will be observed when calculating the charitable contribution 
deduction value of gifts.  It is the donor’s responsibility to obtain any appraisals needed 
for tax purposes.  Non-cash contributions with an estimated value over $500 shall comply 
with IRS Form 8283 (Non-Cash Charitable Contributions).  Fees incurred for the advice 
and assistance of specialists during this process are the obligation of the donor, or will be 
deducted from the fair market value of the donation as recorded by the Foundation.   



1 
 

 
 

GIFT, TICKET AND HONORARIA POLICY #P-2014.02.06-2 
 
I. PURPOSE 

A. The purpose of this policy is to ensure Sonoma Valley Health Care District (SVHCD) 
Board Members, leaders and staff members (including Sonoma Valley Hospital 
(hospital)) comply with external regulations and internally established standards 
regarding the receipt and provision of gifts, tickets and honoraria. This policy covers gifts 
to and from internal and external parties including individuals, businesses and 
organizations. The policy also governs SVHCD's distribution of tickets and passes (e.g., 
to sporting, cultural and community events), and acceptance of payments or 
reimbursements related to speaking or appearing at professional or educational events. 
 
B. Gifts, tickets and honoraria can be perceived tools to influence SVHCD decisions and 
patient care, and can erode public confidence and the impartiality of decisions made by 
public officers, officials and employees. This policy has been adopted to guard against 
even the appearance of impropriety in all aspects of SVHCD's programs, services and 
administration. Furthermore, this policy is intended to prevent the perceived obligations 
of reciprocity that can arise from the giving or accepting of gifts, tickets and honoraria. 

 
II. POLICY 

A. Federal Anti-Kickback Statute: It is the policy of SVHCD to ensure full 
compliance with the federal anti-kickback statute, which prohibits the acceptance 
of any item of value (remuneration) made directly or indirectly, in cash or in kind, 
that may induce or appear to induce the purchase or referral of any kind of health 
care goods, services, or items reimbursed by a federal or state health care program 
(Medicare and Medicaid). The unlawful acceptance of any gifts or business courtesies 
from vendors or others with whom SVMHS presently conducts business – or potentially 
could conduct business – is strictly prohibited.   
 
B. State Gift Laws: Directors, Officers and designated employees of SVMHS 
identified in the District’s Conflict of Interest Code or covered by Government 
Code section 87200 (including public officials who manage public investments) 
are subject to State laws regarding the receipt and disclosure of gifts as set forth in the 
Political Reform Act (at Government Code Section 89503) and the Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC) Regulations. These minimum requirements are not altered 
by this Policy. 

1. Individuals in positions designated in the Conflict of Interest Code’s 
Disclosure Category 1 or 2, or who are covered by Government Code 



2 
 

section 87200 are prohibited from receiving gifts totaling more than $440 
from any single source in a calendar year. 
 
2. Individuals in positions designated in the Conflict of Interest Code’s 
Disclosure Category 3 are prohibited from receiving gifts totaling more 
than $440 in a calendar year from any single source that provides services, 
supplies, materials, machinery or equipment of the type utilized by the District. 
 
3. Individuals in positions designated in the Conflict of Interest Code’s 
Disclosure Category 4 are prohibited from receiving gifts totaling more 
than $440 in a calendar year from any single source that is a type to 
receive grants or other monies from or through SVHCD. 
 
4. These annual limits shall automatically increase or decrease consistent 
with modification to the gift limit established by the FPPC every two 
years. 
 
5. This Subsection B shall not be interpreted to permit receipt of Gifts 
prohibited under any other provision of this Policy, such as Subsection A, 
above. 
 

C. Perishable Items: It is the policy of SVHCD that any department, clinical unit, 
or clinical practice may accept modest perishable gifts such as floral 
arrangements, cookies, candy or similar food items to be shared by staff members and, 
where possible, made available to the public. 
 
D. Gifts to Agency: It is the policy of SVHCD that gifts received by SVHCD or 
any part thereof, which are then distributed to or used by individual recipients 
shall be used for official agency business, and must be distributed and reported as 
required under the Political Reform Act and FPPC Regulations. 
 
E. Solicitation of Gifts: It is the policy of SVHCD that an employee shall not solicit (i.e., 
ask for or request) gifts unless authorized to do so for approved hospital functions, 
fundraisers or special events. Requests for authorization to solicit gifts shall be made in 
writing to the Director of the Human Resources. 
 
F. Gifts Between Employees: It is the policy of SVHCD that gifts of a personal 
nature between employees is permitted, provided hospital funds are not utilized.  The 
value of such gifts should not exceed $25.  It is further the policy of SVHCD that gifts 
between employees that are related to a person’s employment at SVHCD (e.g., for 
Secretary’s Day, Nurses Week, etc.) are permitted, provided they are customary for the 
occasion, are of reasonable value given the circumstances and the persons’ positions in 
the organization, and hospital funds are not

 

 utilized. The value of such gifts shall not 
exceed $25. 

G. Tickets and Passes: All Tickets and Passes received by SVCHD shall be 



3 
 

distributed and reported in accordance with this policy and relevant FPPC 
Regulations. 
 

1. Tickets and Passes that are provided to a SVCHD board member or 
an official designated in the conflict of interest code are not considered 
“Gifts” to the official under State law when they are received and 
distributed by SVHCD in compliance with related FPPC Regulations and 
this Policy. 
 
2. When Tickets and Passes are provided by a third‐party so that the 
recipient can perform a ceremonial role or function on behalf of the 
hospital, as further described in related FPPC Regulations, such Tickets 
and Passes are not considered “Gifts” under State law, though such 
Tickets and Passes shall still be reported by SVHCD. 
 
3. A ticket or pass shall not be considered a gift to the recipient when it is 
provided directly to the recipient from a third-party when the giver and 
receiver treat the ticket or pass as income consistent with applicable 
state and federal income tax laws. 
 

H. All Other Gifts: It is the policy of SVHCD that gifts other than those described 
in paragraphs D through G, above, shall not be accepted in the performance of any officer 
or employee’s duties or responsibilities. This includes gifts from patients, family 
members of patients, vendors or business associates. 
 
I. Honoraria: It is the policy of SVHCD to comply with the Political Reform Act 
and FPPC Regulations regarding the receipt of honoraria. SVHCD Board 
members and those who manage public investments (individuals who are required to file 
statements of economic interests under Government Codes section 87200) are prohibited 
from receiving honoraria payments. Likewise, employees whose positions are designated 
under the SVHCD Conflict of Interest Code are prohibited from receiving honoraria 
payments from any source of gifts or income included in their disclosure categories set 
forth in the Conflict of Interest Code.  Exceptions to the State’s honoraria prohibitions for 
local officials, such as for income earned from a bona fide business or profession, shall 
apply to SVHCD officers and employees. (Government Code Section 89502.) Honoraria 
and reimbursements for event attendance when permitted shall be handled pursuant to the 
procedures set forth below. 

 
III. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. “FPPC Regulations” means the regulations adopted by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission in its role as the implementing and enforcement 
agency of the State’s Political Reform Act. These implementations are set 
forth in title 2, Division 6, Sections 18109-18997 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 
 



4 
 

B. “Gifts”: For purposes of this Policy, “Gifts” are defined and excepted as set 
forth in the Political Reform Act and FPPC Regulations, as they may be 
amended from time to time. Generally speaking, the Political Reform Act 
defines a “gift” as any payment or other benefit received (including 
food/drink, travel or travel expenses, services, and items of any type) that 
confers a personal benefit for which the recipient does not provide something 
(e.g., payment, goods or services) of equal value. This includes a rebate or 
discount in the price of anything of value unless the rebate or discount is 
made in the regular course of business to members of the public without 
regard to official status. 
Exceptions generally include, but are not limited to: 

1. Informational materials such as books, reports, pamphlets, calendars, 
or periodicals. 
2. Gifts which are not used and which, within 30 days after receipt, are 
either returned to the donor or delivered to a nonprofit entity exempt 
from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, 
without being claimed as a charitable contribution for tax purposes. 
3. Gifts from close family members (e.g., an individual’s spouse, child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, parent‐in‐law, 
sister‐in‐law, brother‐in‐law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first 
cousin, or the spouse of any such person) unless the donor is acting as 
an agent or intermediary for any person not covered in this paragraph. 
4. Campaign contributions. 
5. Inheritance. 
6. Personalized plaques or trophies with an individual value of less than 
two hundred and fifty dollars ($250). 
7. Gifts from long-term, close personal friends or friends or colleagues 
from business relationships unrelated to the recipient’s role as a 
public officer or employee. 
8. Acts of neighborliness (e.g., picking up someone’s mail or feeding a 
pet while the recipient is on vacation) or compassion (e.g., delivering 
food or flowers to someone in mourning). 
 

C. “Honoraria” (plural form of “honorarium”) are payments received for 
making a speech, publishing an article, or attending any public or private 
conference, convention, meeting, social event, meal or similar gathering. 
 
D. “Tickets” or “Passes”: The FPPC, in interpreting the Political Reform Act, has 
established that “ticket” or “pass” means “admission to a facility, event, show, or 
performance for entertainment, amusement, recreational or similar purpose.”  This 
includes but is not limited to include tickets/passes/admission to fundraising events, 
luncheons, dinners, parties, etc. from third parties.(Tickets/passes purchased by the 
District/Hospital to enable Board members, the CEO or other employees to attend in their 
official capacity on official business shall not be governed by this policy, e.g., Sonoma 
Valley Chamber of Commerce meetings.)  
 



5 
 

IV. PROCEDURE 
 

A. Giving and Receiving Gifts to or from Outside SVHCD in the Course of 
Business 

1. Receiving Gifts from External Parties: Gifts from patients or patients’ 
families shall be discouraged. An employee who is offered a gift of cash 
or a cash equivalent shall decline the gift or may suggest a donation to a 
charitable organization such as the Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation. 
However, if the employee has a reasonable belief that refusing to accept such a 
gift would have a detrimental effect on a patient or the Hospital as an institution, 
the employee must report in writing and forward the gift immediately to the 
Department Director. The following applies to all gifts received by employees or 
SVHCD in the course of business: 

a. An employee who receives a gift shall notify and forward the gift to the 
department director, who shall determine, in cooperation with 
the CEO, whether State disclosures (e.g., on FPPC Form 801) are 
required. 
b. If a Gift is provided to SVHCD for distribution at the agency’s 
discretion, the CEO shall distribute the Gift in accordance with 
FPPC Regulations. In such cases, the hospital shall maintain records of 
such gifts and utilize FPPC Form 801, Gifts to Agency Report, to 
document this information. The hospital shall forward the 
completed Form 801 (Attachment A) within 30 days from the 
distribution of each included Gift to the Sonoma County Clerk, 
and shall post completed forms on the SVHCD web site. Gifts 
appearing on a Form 801 need not be included in the eventual 
recipient’s Statement of Economic Interests. 
c. If the Gift was provided other than for distribution at the agency’s 
discretion, the CEO shall decide how to handle the 
gift under relevant FPPC Regulations, including allowing the 
employee to retain it, or distributing it within the department (where 
feasible. 
d. Gifts of minimal value (under $25) such as pencils, desk calendars, and 
other promotional items may be distributed and used within the receiving 
department. 
e. With prior written approval of the CEO, vendors may provide 
meals and other food to employees only when the vendor is 
providing significant education related to products or procedures, 
or when conducting informational business meetings. Written attendance 
records must be provided to the CEO for all meetings at which meals are 
provided. 

i. The total value of any meal should not exceed $20 per 
attendee. 
ii. Annual value of all meals provided by a single vendor shall 
not exceed $300 per year without prior written approval of the 
CEO. 



6 
 

2. Offering or Giving Gifts to External Parties: Under limited circumstances, 
gifts may be given to external parties provided they relate 
to the business of SVHCD, are in SVHCD’s best interests and are legally and 
culturally acceptable. In addition they should meet the following criteria: 

a. Cash gifts or cash equivalents, such as gift certificates, are 
prohibited. 
b. The non-cash or non-cash equivalent gift may not exceed $25.00 
per recipient/year. 
c. The item is customary and does not create an appearance of 
impropriety. 
d. Giving the gift imposes no sense of obligation on the part of either the 
giver or recipient. 
e. Giving of the item is not concealed. 
f. Giving of the item has been approved in advance and in writing by the 
relevant department executive and copied to the CEO. 

 
B. Giving and Receiving Gifts within SVHCD in the Course of Business 

1. Gifts and cash equivalents, such as gift cards may be given to 
employees as incentives for program attendance, recognition of 
outstanding achievement or for other positive rationale.  Gifts in excess of 
$25.00 shall be documented as income and taxed accordingly.  The CEO 
shall develop written policies and procedures for this to occur. 
2. If an employee receives a gift card of any value (e.g., $10.00 Starbucks 
Gift Card) from the organization, the value ($10.00) of such gift must be 
documented as income and taxed accordingly. This provision does not 
apply to coupons for specific items, such as a free drink or free meal, or 
discount coupons such as 10% off any purchase in the Cafeteria, Gift Shop 
or Starbucks. 
3. If gift cards are approved in writing by the CEO for distribution from 
the department executive, the director is responsible to obtaining the 
names of employees receiving such gifts and providing the information in 
writing to accounting with a copy to the CEO. 

 
C. Ticket/Pass Distribution 
This procedure section shall provide procedures for the distribution of Tickets and 
Passes as required under State law, to ensure proper identification and use of 1) 
receipt of Tickets and Passes; 2) the “public purpose” to be achieved in 
distributing Tickets and Passes; 3) distribution of Tickets and Passes; 4) 
documentation and 5) public posting of the receipt and use of Tickets or Passes. 
Proper exercise of these procedures will exclude Tickets and Passes from required 
disclosure on individuals’ Statements of Economic Interests. For the purposes of 
this section of the policy, “official” means all positions identified in SVHCD’s 
Conflict of Interest Code. 

1. Ticket/Pass Receipt Process: All Tickets/Passes received by SVHCD 
shall be forwarded to Administration. Determination of whether to give 



7 
 

the tickets/passes to the Foundation for use, or to distribute internally will 
be at the discretion of the CEO. 
2. Public Purpose: The distribution of Tickets or Passes by SVHCD/SVH 
must be in furtherance of a “public purpose.” Examples of such public 
purpose: 

a. To promote networking opportunities of officials with 
community stakeholders. 
b. To evaluate SVHCD/SVH’s ability to attract business at the 
locale or event, and thus to contribute to the healthcare of the 
community in the future. 
c. To reward an official, employee or hospital stakeholder for his 
or her exemplary service to the organization or to encourage staff 
development. 
d. To promote attendance at a hospital-sponsored event or event 
held at the hospital in order to maximize potential from concession 
sales. 
e. To reward a hospital healthcare partner for its contributions to 
the SVHCD/SVH or the community. 
f. To provide opportunities to those who are receiving services 
from County and State agencies consistent with the District's goals 
for the particular population (e.g., for use by juvenile wards in the 
custody of the Chief Probation Officer or mental health clients and 
seniors receiving services from the Health and Human Services 
Agency/Public Health); or 
g. To promote health, motivate and provide expanded opportunities 
to vulnerable populations in the SVHCD such as the disabled, 
underprivileged, seniors, and youth in foster care. 

3. Distribution: Tickets/Passes are distributed at the discretion of the 
CEO. Once distributed, tickets cannot be transferred by the recipient other than to 
members of the official’s immediate family or no more than one guest, solely for 
such guest’s attendance at the event with the recipient.  
4. Documentation: The CEO shall ensure that the hospital will maintain record 
of all Ticket/Pass distribution and the use of Tickets and Passes by SVHCD 
officials for ceremonial purposes, as required by FPPC Regulations and utilizing 
FPPC Form 802, Agency Report of Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass 
Distribution, to document this information. The hospital must forward the FPPC 
Form 802 (Attachment B) within 45 days from the distribution of each Ticket or 
Pass to the FPPC via email to 
Form802@fppc.ca.gov; by Fax to 916.322.0886; or by mail to 428 J 
Street, Suite 620, Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 

D. Honoraria and Reimbursement for Professional/Educational Involvement 
1. With the prior written approval of the CEO, employees who provide education 
at professional conferences and meetings may accept 
reimbursement for travel, meals and hotel expenses for the date(s) of the 
presentation(s). Presentations must be professional and educational in 



8 
 

nature and may not be for the sole purpose of product endorsement. 
2. In such circumstances, unless prohibited above, honoraria of $100 or less in 
value may be accepted from the host organization. 
 

V. DOCUMENTATION 
A. Department directors shall maintain written records of all gifts given to employees of 
their departments when such gifts are to be reported under this Policy. Such 
documentation will include the type and value of each gift, the name and affiliation or 
position of recipient(s) and giver(s), the date of receipt and disposition, and method of 
disposition and provide a copy to the CEO.  
 
B. Human Resources shall maintain documentation of education done in orientation or at 
annual compliance training. Department directors shall maintain documentation of staff 
training meetings. 

 
C. Statements of Economic Interest (including gift disclosures under State law) shall be 
handled in accordance with the SVHCD Conflict of Interest Policy. 
 
D. The CEO shall develop and implement policies and procedures that will maintain a 
record of all ticket/pass distribution as required by FPPC Regulations, including copies of 
all completed FPPC Forms (e.g., Form 801: Gift to Agency Report; Form 802: Agency 
Report of Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass Distribution Form 802). 

 
E. The CEO shall be responsible for posting completed FPPC Forms (e.g., Form 801: 
Gift to Agency Report) on the SVHCD website when required by State law. 

 
VI. REFERENCES 

A. The Medicare and Medicaid Patient Protection Act of 1987 (42 U.S.C. 1320a- 
7b) (Anti-Kickback Statute. 
B. Political Reform Act, California Government Code §81000 et. seq. 
C. FPPC Regulations, Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, Division 6, 
§18109 et seq. 


	P-2013.06.06-3_Gift-Acceptance.pdf
	GIFT ACCEPTANCE POLICY
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	IV. Gift Appraisal and/or valuation


